Municipality of Lakeland Ridges
Regular Meeting Minutes
September 8™, 2025

COUNCIL PRESENT: Mayor Leonard Foster
Deputy Mayor Ross Stairs
Councillor Linda Porter
Councillor Patti Budd
Councillor Randy Stairs
Councillor Chris Yerxa
Councillor Gary Grant
Councillor Barb Glanville

ABSENT:

STAFF IN ATTENDANCE: Susan Patterson — CAO/Clerk
Lana Sharpe - Treasurer

1. CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Foster called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 pm

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

MOTION: It was moved by Deputy Mayor Stairs and seconded by Councillor Stairs to approve
the September 8™, 2025 regular meeting agenda with three additions. Mayor Foster added
security cameras, Councillor Stairs wanted a bit of time to speak about Meductic building and
Councillor Porter asked to speak about the website.

All in favor.
Motion carried #84-2025

3. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST:
Councillor Stairs declared a Conflict of Interest in regards to item 6. €) snow removal contracts.

4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES:
Before a motion was made to adopt the minutes Councillor Porter told Mayor Foster that she had
a few questions and comments regarding the minutes.

1. Item 6a). Did the Mayor write a letter to WorkSafe NB? Mayor Foster replied no, but he had
a very good conversation with them.

2. Item 6c¢). She thought it should be noted that after reviewing the draft Fire Policy that it was
said that the committee would begin working on an EMO plan as a next step for that committee.



3. 6g). Council Porter asked if the money had been sent in for the Highway Usage Agreement?
Susie responded that this was an item on the agenda.

4. 6h). She asked if the $2500 that council agreed to give to the Food Security Project was
issued to them. Susie explained that she had been in contact with the organizers and they are in
the process of getting a bank account set up in their name and would let me know when they had
an official name that the cheque could be made out to.

5. 61). Councillor Porter asked if the consolidated plan for Canterbury & Meductics CCBF funds
was completed and sent in. Susie explained that the consultant had been on vacation but they
were working on it.

6. 61). She asked if Mayor Foster had written and sent a letter to the Minister regarding the
operation of a boat wash station at the Skiff Lake Ranger Station. Mayor Foster confirmed the
letter was sent and we had received acknowledgement that it was received.

7. 7a) Councillor Porter asked if the ATV club received their $500 donation that was approved by
council. Susie responded yes and the cheque has already been cashed. Councillor Grant gave
Susie a thank you card from the Club for the donation.

8. Councillor Porter asked if a letter had been sent into the province regarding councils concerns
with the provinces planned Assessment Rate Freeze. She feels strongly that Lakeland Ridges
should send one of their own even though UMNB was working with the other communities as a
group. Councillor Porter stated that the province shouldn’t just freeze the assessment rates but
should also freeze the tax rates.

MOTION: It was moved by Councillor Grant and seconded by Councillor Glanville to approve
the minutes of the August 11", 2025 regular meeting.

All in favor.

Motion carried #85-2025

5. PUBLIC INPUT/INQUIRIES/PRESENTATIONS:

a) Rhonda Alward addressed council with concerns surrounding the temporary closure of the
Meductic Building (due to a WorkSafe order). With Meductic Days fast approaching she is
worried about being able to have access to the recreation departments items that are stored in the
building and are needed for the event. She questioned other topics such as temporary closure of
the park this summer, the septic system and park upgrades. She suggested better communication
with the public.




6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

a) Meductic Building/WorkSafe — Mayor Foster gave an update on the meetings with
WorkSafe, confirmed the test results did show asbestos and reviewed the two quotes received to
have the building cleaned. The quote from PaulDavis came in at $128,148.10 (plus tax) and
included asbestos abatement on asbestos containing material that shows signs of heavy damage,
encapsulation of asbestos containing material not showing signs of damage (which would require
annual inspections) and a complete cleaning of building and contents with hepa vacuum and
wipe down. The quote from Nordic Clean Air came in at $17,400.00 (plus tax) and includes a
decontamination cleaning using HEPA filtered equipment and wet wiping of horizontal surfaces
within the building, and repair of damaged asbestos containing items observed at the time of the
site visit.

MOTION: It was moved by Councillor Stairs and seconded by Councillor Yerxa to accept the
quote dated Sept. 5™ from Nordic Clean Air which includes the removal and/or repair of
damaged asbestos containing items in the amount of $17,400.00 (plus tax).

All in favor.

Motion carried #86-2025

b) Tender for Fire Truck — Chief Foster said that he reviewed the tender and will make
suggested changes to fit our needs. These changes should allow us to purchase a stock truck.
Chief Foster also stated that the Truck and Equipment Committee have not met yet. Councillor
Porter suggested that council petition the province to change their regulations regarding fire
trucks.

¢) Land Purchase in Benton — Susie explained that after lawyer fees, land transfer taxes, etc.
that the estimated cost of the two properties would end up costing around $23,000.00. After a
discussion it was suggested making a counter offer to the province.

MOTION: It was moved by Councillor Stairs and seconded by Councillor Yerxa to offer the
Department of Transportation .30 cents on the dollar of the current assessed value.

Two Nay votes. Councillor Grant and Councillor Glanville
Six Yay votes.

Motion carried #87-2025

d) Highway Usage Permit for Meductic septic — The HUP has been completed and sent into
DTI. Susie explained that the letter of confirmation of insurance was received from the insurance
provider, which included proof of insurance with “his majesty the king” named as an additional
insured per section 8 of the HUP. She and Lana also spoke with the auditors senior account
regarding the use of Capital Reserve for the $15,000 security deposit. However, Lana felt it that
it could be taken out of the 2024 reserve funds that was not spent on a Meductic project in that



year. Councillor Stairs and Councillor Porter questioned the amount of time this project has
taken. Susie will provide a timeline at the October meeting.

e) Snow removal Contracts — Councillor Stairs declared a conflict and left the building.
Council agreed to post the contracts the same as in the past with all contracts, excluding the
Meductic contract, to be quoted as a price per trip. The Meductic contract would be based on a
6-month term to be paid in 6 equal monthly installments from Nov — April for each winter
season. However, all contracts would be awarded for a two-year term with the rates of the
second year to be increased using the Consumer Price Index.

MOTION: It was moved by Councillor Grant and seconded by Councillor Glanville to post all
Snow Removal Contracts as a Two-Year term using the same quotation format as in previous
years.

All in favor.
Motion carried #88-2025

f) Website — Mayor Foster said he had received comments from a member of the public
regarding the lack of information on the website during the wildfire. Councillor Stairs said that
DNRED is in control during wildfires as well as what information is posted so there is no
miscommunication. Councillor Glanville said that having voyent alert would help with the
delivery of information. Mayor Foster confirmed the WVRSC will be covering the cost of
voyent alert in their 2026 budget but it would not be starting until the new year.

Councillor Porter said when her, Councillor Budd and Councillor Bull met with the web
developer in January of 2024 that she did not take on the responsibility of the website and only
was working on the tourism part of it. She asked if council would agree to give Julia Grant (one
of her committee members) access to the website so she could manage the tourism section.
Mayor Foster said that the HR committee would review the request.

Councillor Glanville stated that she manages several websites and questioned the privacy and
security of the site. She offered her assistance to get things cleaned up.

Deputy Mayor Stairs suggested that council dust off the draft social media policy that was sat
aside in 2024. Susie will send it out to council again.

g) Future of Canterbury Building — Mayor Foster stated that we require answers about the
Meductic building before we can set the date to move the offices. Once the offices are moved,
he is questioning the future of the current office building. Councillor Budd would like to see it
posted on our website and ask the public for suggestions.



7. CORRESPNDENCE:

a) Letter from Sharon Kitchen — As a local resident, Sharon wrote a letter to council asking for
answers for a few questions. First, what the status of the old partially burnt house just before the
school? Second, what is the status on the commercial dishwasher for the Community Centre?
And the lastly, she wanted to express her concern with councils’ decision to possibly purchase
land for the purpose of reselling which she feels is gambling with taxpayers’ money.

Mayor Foster explained that the By-Law Enforcement Officer has started the process to have the
house torn down as a violation to our Dangerous and Unsightly Premises By-Law. We are
hoping to have more updates soon.

Susie explained that the purchasing of the dishwasher for the CCC would be paid for using
Canterbury’s surplus money as recommended by the Ward 4 Councillors.

Mayor Foster said it would be up to council to make the purchase of the land or not.

b) Request for letter of support for the Canterbury Seniors Club — Council did not have an
issue with the Mayor writing a letter of support.

¢) Request for letter of support for Food Security Project - Council did not have an issue with

the Mayor writing a letter of support.

8. QUESTIONS REGARDING MAYOR’S REPORT
No report provided.

9. QUESTIONS REGARDING COUNCIL. MEMBER REPORTS
No reports provided.

a) EWM committee update on Skiff Lake site — Deputy Mayor Stairs said his committee was
gathering information on the development of the Skift Lake waste disposal site. We are working
with WVRSC to make sure we are following the proper procedures to meet requirements.

Deputy Mayor Stairs said that he does not think it will cost the $75,000 that has been set aside in
the CCBF to complete the project. He said he was asked by the North Lake Recreation Council
if council would be able to give them more money towards their pickleball court project. They
are in need of approximately $21,000 to complete the asphalt surface and the fencing. Susie
confirmed that the NLRC received $22,425 in June (2025) of the CCBF top up funding to pay
for the ground prep work for the pickleball court.

MOTION: It was moved by Deputy Mayor Stairs and seconded by Councillor Grant to
reallocate any remaining funds from current year projects (up to approximately $21,000) to the
North Lake Pickleball court project.



All in favor.

Motion carried #89-2025

10. QUESTIONS REGARDING CAO’S REPORT

11. QUESTIONS TO THE TREASURERS REPORT

12. NEW BUSINESS
No new business

13. UPCOMING EVENTS

14. CLOSED SESSION

14. ADJOURNMENT at 9:44pm.

Mayor CAO/Clerk



